
Members and guests are expected to show respect and common courtesy and refrain from using offensive language and behavior. The Board may 
recess or adjourn into Executive Session to consider legal or personnel issues, if needed. 

 
 

AGENDA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Tuesday, September 25, 2018 
1:30pm – West Center 

 

Directors:  Carol Crothers (President), Donna Coon (Vice-President), Denise Nichols (Secretary), Roger Myers (Treasurer),  
Carol Lambert (Assistant Secretary), Tom Sadowski (Assistant Treasurer), Nina Campfield, Lynne Chalmers,  
Charles Sieck, Tim Stewart, Sandra Thornton, Gail Vanderhoof, Kent Blumenthal (non-voting) 

 
 

  Agenda Topic  Director Exhibit Action 
I.  Call to Order / Quorum Crothers   

II.  Adopt Agenda Crothers X X 

III.  Consent Calendar 
1. Minutes: Board of Directors Meeting August 28, 2018 

 
Crothers 

 
X 

 
X 

IV. President Report Crothers   

V. CEO Report Blumenthal   

VI. Committee Reports 
1. Planning & Evaluation (P&E) 

A. Exhibit – Recommendation to Proceed with East Center Pickleball Courts 
Addressing Safe Play Conditions & Court Improvements 

 
Coon 

 
 

X 

 
 

X 

 2. Fiscal Affairs (FAC) 
A. Exhibit – Financial Statements August 2018 (draft) 
B. Exhibit – Recommendation to Approve Funding for Planning & Evaluation 

Committee – Endorsed East Center Pickleball Courts Addressing Safe Play 
Conditions & Court Improvements 

Myers  
X 
X 

 
X 
X 

 3. Board Affairs (BAC) 
A. Action - Legal Opinion Provided to Board Regarding BAC-recommended 

Changes to CPM (Privileged & Confidential Memo and Exhibit, dated 9/6/18) 

Vanderhoof  
 

 
X 

 4. Survey Ad Hoc (SAH) 
A. Exhibit - Request for Legal Opinion on Sanctions for Board Code of Conduct 

Violations 
B. Exhibit - Recommendation to Establish FAQ Ad Hoc Committee 

Lambert  
X 
 

X 

 
X 
 

X 

 5. GVR-GVR Foundation Relationship Ad Hoc  Sieck   

 6. Nominations & Elections (N&E) Nichols   

 7. Investments Ad Hoc  Sadowski   

 8. Bylaws Ad Hoc  Chalmers   

 9. Audit  Sieck   

VII.  New Business 
1. Action – Legal Opinion Provided to Board Regarding Changes to CPM Pertaining to 

Electioneering on GVR Property (Attorney email dated 9/10/18) 

 
Blumenthal 

  
X 

 2. Exhibit – Affirm that Board Desires DRAFT Meeting Minutes Posted Prior to Formal 
Board of Directors’ Approval 

Blumenthal X X 

VIII.  Member Comments    

IX. Executive Session (if necessary)    

X.  Adjournment   X 
 



 

 
1 

 

  A regular meeting of the GREEN VALLEY RECREATION, INC. BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS held Tuesday, August 28, 2018 at West Center, the President being in the 
chair and the Secretary being present. 

 
Directors Present: Carol Crothers (President), Donna Coon (Vice-President), Nina Campfield,  

Charles Sieck, Tim Stewart, Sandra Thornton, Gail Vanderhoof,  
Kent Blumenthal (CEO) 

 
Directors Present Electronically: Lynne Chalmers, Denise Nichols (Secretary) 
  
Directors Absent: Carol Lambert, Roger Myers (Treasurer), Tom Sadowski 

 
Staff:  Cheryl Moose (CFO), Jen Morningstar (Director of Administrative Services), David Jund (Facilities 

Director), George Rushing II (Recreation Director), Randy Cheatham (IT Director), Conal Ward (IT 
Technician) 
 

Visitors:  
 

I. Call to Order / Establish Quorum  
President Crothers called the meeting to order at 1:31 MST 
Roll call by Vice President Coon; Quorum established. 
 

II. Adopt Agenda as amended 
MOTION: Vanderhoof / Seconded. Adopt Agenda as amended. 

 Passed: 6 yes / 3 no (Campfield, Coon, Stewart) 
 
III. Consent Calendar 

MOTION: Stewart / Seconded. Approve June 26, 2018 Meeting Minutes as presented. 
Passed: unanimous 
 
MOTION: Sieck / Seconded. Approve August 10, 2018 Special Meeting Minutes as amended. 
Passed: unanimous 
 
MOTION: Vanderhoof / Seconded. Approve Financial Statements of June 
 

IV. President’s Report 
We have a very full agenda so I will be brief. 
 
First, you can see from the agenda that your board has been busy.  We have many subjects to cover 
this afternoon. 
 



 

 
2 

 

What seems to be top of many members’ minds is the state of the relationship between the GVR 
board and the GVR Foundation.  Let me assure you that your board wants to see a solid productive 
relationship that benefits our members and our entire community. 
 
We have created an ad hoc committee with the express purpose of building the relationship.  Tim 
Stewart, Charlie Sieck, Donna Coon and Roger Myers form the committee.  I will let Tim tell you all 
that he and his team have accomplished already, and Charlie will talk about the answers he has 
found to some of our questions.  A major first step was getting the background information that 
describes the legal framework under which we (GVR) as a 501c(4) need to work with the 
Foundation a 501c(3).  This document answers many of the board’s questions and also reinforces 
the need for a written document on how we must proceed to prevent tax problems. 
 
The ad hoc committee is committed to getting all questions answered and moving us towards the 
necessary written documentation. 
 
We are changing the order of our agenda items today.  Most of the business of GVR goes through 
our committees so I think it is appropriate to address committee items first. 
 
Our Board Affairs committee has been busy working through the CPM to be sure it is in compliance 
with our bylaws and Arizona law.  You will see a number of recommended CPM updates later in the 
meeting. 
 
Our Survey Ad hoc committee has been hard at work. Sandra Thornton with the underserved 
subcommittee will be giving a report and recommendation.  The communications sub group gave 
an excellent report at our work session.  We had hoped to present and approve some of the 
recommendations today but Carol Lambert is out of town. 
 
The Fiscal Affairs committee is in the middle of the 2019 budget which includes our dues.  I would 
urge all interested members to attend their meetings to stay up to speed on the deliberations. 
 
The P&E committee has work underway with our WSM architects on the new Pickleball courts and 
they have promised us to move as quickly as possible.  Donna will be giving you an update. 
 
A major activity of your board and CEO was to agree on a Work Plan for the governance year.  
There have been many recommendations and updates from all sides to be sure this year’s work plan 
lines up the objectives of the board with the administration’s overall activities. 
 
We received a letter from GVR Foundation VP Regina Ford asking for a supporting letter for a 
grant application for the MAP program.  Of course we will comply.  I asked our CEO to prepare the 
letter for my signature.  I want to thank the Foundation folks who have put in so many hours of 
volunteer effort helping our less fortunate members and our community at large. 

  



 

 
3 

 

V. CEO Report 
Maybe it is because it has been eight weeks since our last regular session meeting of the GVR 
Board.  Or perhaps it is because with every passing day, the stakes get higher for an ‘Envisioned 
Future’ for GVR.  Either way, this board meeting where only 10 of the 12 Directors are present 
promises to be the most important of the year, if not the past five years. 
What the Board will consider today is nothing less than: 
 
• A comprehensive work plan for this governance year that expires in just seven months. 
• The hope for a mutually respectful, collaborative relationship between GVR and the GVR 

Foundation. 
• Reliance on sound legal advice that will continue to protect our Corp. today and tomorrow. 
• Transparency in communications that affects the lives of all GVR members. 
• Affordability, as defined in its broadest context, of all things we know and enjoy about GVR 

and its offerings to our 24,000 individual members. 
 
Meanwhile, the work of the Corp. continues even as we meet here today: 
1. On Thursday at 1:30 PM here in this West Center auditorium is a member forum on our Solar 

Panel Installation Project initiative.  A $4.2 million initiative, by the way, that will not cost GVR 
a penny.  In fact, GVR will save tens of thousands of dollars each year, once all solar 
installations are completed.   
 

2. The new GVR SOS Volunteer initiative launches just after Labor Day. 
 

3. GVR Now! Newsletter production has been made more efficient and its distribution expanded. 
We were able to reduce production costs for our monthly newsletter by completing virtually all 
design in-house. This has reduced expenses and shortened the production schedule for each 
issue.  GVR Now! newspaper-type stands are now in place at Continental Shopping Center and 
other local retail sites. 

 
4. The 2018 Reserve Study Updates prepared by the Browning Reserve Group under contract with 

GVR is completed and is posted on GVR Website. 
 

5. Development of the proposed FY2019 budget is progressing nicely and on a fast-track, in 
accordance with Fiscal Affairs Committee and Board expectations.  With this being late-
August, I am pleased that we are as far along as we are with budget development. Our early 
progress on the FY2019 budget allows for more Board and committee review and discussion 
than before.  

 
Upcoming FY2019 budget review meetings include: 

 
• A FAC review of capital projects on August 30;  
• A September 13 Board budget work session;  
• A September 18 regular FAC committee meeting;  
• And a presentation of the proposed FY2019 budget for adoption at the September 25 GVR 

Board meeting.  



 

 
4 

 

At this point in the process, the FY2019 proposed $11.6M (approx.) budget reviewed by the Fiscal 
Affairs Committee this past week is balanced at ‘$0’ net revenue/expenses.   In the FY2019 
proposal, the percentage of the annual operating and capital budget covered by member dues is 
61.33%, up slightly from 2018 (at 59.42%).  
 
FAC Chair Roger Myers, CFO Cheryl Moose, and Accounting Manager David Webster are 
working hard to see that this budget timeline is met. It is obvious to me that the budget 
development process and all that must be considered as part of it is not universally understood. I’m 
hoping that Roger and the Fiscal Affairs Committee can soon host a ‘GVR budget primer’ that will 
describe the budget development process and answer questions about GVR budget ‘unducables,’ as 
I like to call them. 
 
Lastly, finalizing the 2018/2019 GVR Work Plan is of particular importance. My hope and 
expectation is that it is intended as a ‘win-win-win’ between the Board, staff and membership. 
Determining how to measure success for each work plan item is critical. Some of the proposed 
work plan items are loaded with needed additional administrative and accounting work.  
 
For these items, more implementation discussions between me and the Board are require to 
identify how to avoid bloating the GVR bureaucracy while keeping staff focused on operations and 
the Board focused within its policy-making purview.  More about this issue when we get to that 
agenda item. 
 
Thank you for being here today. Let’s have a productive and success-driven afternoon. 

 
VI. Committee Reports 

A. Foundation Ad Hoc  
1. Motion: Sieck / Seconded. Send response letter prepared by ad hoc relationship 

committee to GVR Foundation 
Passed: unanimous 
 

2. Motion: Sieck / Seconded. Upon clarification of appropriate steps to assure compliance 
with federal tax rules, GVR cover the Foundation’s cost for the marketing materials for 
the Pickleball fundraising campaign, up to $9500 if the Foundation decides to pursue 
the campaign. 
Passed: unanimous 
 

B. Board Affairs 
1. Motion: Vanderhoof / Seconded. Approve changes to policy (Exhibit A – Suspension of 

Privileges) and incorporate changes into Corporate Policy Manual. 
Passed: 5 yes / 4 no (Campfield, Coon, Nichols, Stewart) 
 
MOTION: Sieck / Seconded. Call the question. 
Passed: unanimous 
 
 



 

 
5 

 

2. MOTION: Sieck / Seconded. Take these exhibits and get legal opinions on them and 
make adjustments accordingly and then bring them back to the Board for voting. Make 
sure they go back to Board Affairs and they agree with the changes and then come back 
to the Board, and I want to see what the legal cost for the opinion. 
 

 
3. MOTION TO AMEND: Campfield / Seconded. Include Exhibit A in legal opinion 

request.  
Passed: 7 yes / 2 no (Chalmers, Vanderhoof) 

 
AMENDED MOTION: send Exhibits A-E to legal counsel opinions on them and make 
adjustments accordingly and then bring them back to the Board for voting. Make sure 
they go back to Board Affairs and they agree with the changes and then come back to the 
Board, and I want to see what the legal cost is for the opinion. 
Passed: 7 yes / 2 no (Chalmers, Vanderhoof) 

 
C. Audit 

Chair Charles Sieck introduced committee member Ted Schultz. The committee will begin work 
over the next few months. 
 

D. Survey Ad Hoc  
MOTION: Thornton / Seconded. The Board of Directors request the Fiscal Affairs 
Committee to thoroughly review the impact of keeping GVR dues level until an alternative 
can be developed that recognizes the struggle of some of our members to afford the ever 
increasing GVR dues. 
Passed: 5 yes / 4 no (Campfield, Coon, Nichols, Stewart) 

 
E. Fiscal Affairs 

Director Campfield explained the Fiscal Affairs Committee is looking at changing the budget 
development policy giving staff and the Board more time to prepare and review proposed 
annual budgets. 
 

F. Planning & Evaluation 
Director Coon reported on the progress of solar panel installation, East Center pickleball court 
lighting and the Pickleball Center design. 
 

G. Nominations & Elections no report 
 

H. Investments no report 
 

VII. New Business 
A. Letter of support for GVR Foundation (White Elephant Grant) 

MOTION: Stewart / Seconded. Board approve sending letter of support for GVR 
Foundation White Elephant MAP grant. 
Passed: unanimous 
  



 

 
6 

 

B. Proposed 2018-19 GVR Work Plan 
MOTION: Sieck / Seconded. Approve 2018-2019 GVR Work Plan with the condition that 
outstanding items be finalized by the Executive Board and the CEO within the next week. 
 
 
 
 
Outstanding Items: 
II. Marketing & Communications  
4. Strategic - Non-Dues Revenue 
• Continue to Identify and grow non-dues revenue. 

o Note from 8/9 Work Session: Myers will work with Blumenthal to provide reword so 
success can be measured 

 
III. Information Technology 
4. Operational – GVR Website 
• Create FAQ pilot for answering member inquiries  
• Within the FAQ create a ‘Pending Response’ area for questions sent to the Board that need a 

response and are relevant to all the membership. Once an answer is given they would be 
moved to FAQ area. 
o Note from 8/9 Work Session: Lambert and Blumenthal will propose language; Board 

will determine procedures for responding to/answering member inquiries and forwarding 
to staff for web posting. 
 

V. Administration, Facilities & Recreation Management 
9. Operational – Investment of Reserve Funds 
• Move three reserve funds (MR&R, Emergency and New Initiative) to managed accounts 

through development of a formal RFP which seeks open competition. 
• Final selection of successful bidder to be submitted for approval by the Board. 
• Create a cash flow analysis that projects the requirements for operations, MR&R, Capital 

expenditures and new initiatives. CEO and CFO will work with the committee to define 
requirements. 
o Note from 8/9 Work Session:  Board agreed that Myers and Campfield will propose new 

language to support Investment Committee for this section in anticipation of move to 
managed funds:  
 Propose cash flow and maturity of investments 
 CEO & CFO will work with committee to define requirements for cash flow analysis 

that predicts cash requirements 
Passed: unanimous 
 

C. Proposal: Board Responses to Member emails 
MOTION: Campfield / Seconded.  
• CEO place the following statement adjacent to the hotlink board@gvrec.org:  “The 

Board of Directors appreciates hearing member views and suggestions.  If you wish to 
receive a response, please indicate ‘Response’ in the subject line of your email;” 
 

mailto:board@gvrec.org


 

 
7 

 

• CEO change the automatic reply to member emails sent to the Board of Directors to: 
“Thank you for your email, which has been received by all members of the Board of 
Directors. If you requested a response, you will hear from the Secretary of the BOD;” 
 

• Secretary of the Board of Directors be authorized to determine where the subject of an 
email should be dealt with, i.e., which committee or Board meeting, and to respond to 
member emails that request a response; and 
 

• Notification of this change be published in the eBlast and GVR Now! 
 

• Refer to Board Affairs Committee for placement in Corporate Policy Manual 
 

• Have these changes reviewed by corporate attorney. 
Passed: unanimous 
 

D. Establish Bylaws Ad Hoc Committee and Appoint Chair 
MOTION: Crothers / Seconded. President Crothers proposed forming an ad hoc committee 
to review the proposed amended and restated bylaws. The completion date of the ad hoc 
committee’s work would be October 31, 2020. Additionally, appoint Lynne Chalmers as 
chair. 
Passed: unanimous 
 

E. Appoint New Co-Chair to Survey Ad Hoc Committee 
MOTION: Crothers / Seconded. Appoint Charles Sieck as third co-chair of Survey Ad Hoc 
Committee, specifically to work on  
Passed: unanimous 
 

F. Request: Release Summary of Legal Opinion – “Standard of Service” 
MOTION: Campfield / Seconded. Direct CEO to prepare a statement based on the April 23, 
2018 legal opinion defining Standard of Service as described in GVR Bylaws, Article III 
Section 3. Further, direct the CEO distribute the statement to GVR Board and to general 
GVR Membership. 
Passed: unanimous 
 

G. Request: Legal Opinion (Civil Rights of Board Members) 
Discusssion 

 

VIII. Member Comments:  
 

IX. Adjournment 
MOTION: Campfield / Seconded. Meeting Adjourned at pm MST.  
Passed: unanimous 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
8 

 

 
**‘Action without Meeting’ Unanimous Consent Resolution.   

At the request of President Carol Crothers on August 17, 2018, the GVR Board of Directors 
approved the appointment of Tim Stewart, Roger Myers, Donna Coon and Charlie Sieck to serve on 
an ad hoc committee with the mission of creating a positive working relationship with the 
foundation by  

1. Answer the Foundation's letter 
2. Gather questions from GVR board members and organize them in the most efficient way to 

gain satisfactory answers, ie GVR attorney, Foundation existing documentation, 
administration, joint GVR/Foundation attorney 

3. Document all questions and answers giving both boards the opportunity to clarify both 
questions and answers.  Everything is written down. 

4. Working with the Foundation prepare a supplemental agreement that spells out the terms 
and conditions of a joint fundraising campaign 

5. Organize a meeting of the board where the questions and answers are provided ahead of 
time and the details of the supplemental agreement are shared so that we can move ahead in 
a productive relationship. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
              
Denise Nichols Date Jen Morningstar Date 
Secretary  Director of Administrative Services 



1 
 

 

 

 
APPROVED 

9/13/18 
 

EXHIBIT 
Planning & Evaluation Committee 

September 13, 2018 – GVR East Center 
 

East Center Pickleball Courts  
Addressing Safe Play Conditions & Court Improvements 

 
Posting approved by Donna Coon September 17, 2018 

 

Overview 

On February 27, 2018 the GVR Board of Directors unanimously approved to fund lighting of Pickleball courts 
#1, #2 and #3 at East Center (EC). The Board stipulated that up-to $90,000 may be reallocated for this purpose 
within the Board-approved FY 2018 budget for non-Reserve Capital Projects. On March 22, 2018, the GVR 
Board of Directors voted to retain WSM to explore converting EC Court #1 east/west-oriented court into two 
(2) north/south oriented courts.  

The current lay-out of courts #1 & #2 has physical safety concerns that have existed for many years.  The GVR 
Board recently received more communication from members about these safety issues, which include having 
courts #2 & #3 laid out too close to each other thereby exposing players to potential collisions (typical on-
court dividing/protection fencing is absent due to the narrow court dimensions); cracks; expansion joints; and 
poor surfacing. 

Custom Courts & Tiles (CCT), the Phoenix-based firm that had built East Center Courts #4-#7 has been hired to 
repair two tennis courts at Las Campanas, as authorized by the GVR Board at its May 24, 2018 meeting.  Work 
to repair the two tennis courts at Las Campanas is expected to begin late July 2018 and be completed by mid-
September 2018. 

Staff requested a proposal from CCT to construct two new lighted, post-tensioned courts out of EC Court #1 
and to overlay EC Courts #2 & #3 with post-tensioned concrete lighted courts, with required sidewalks and 
court entry gateways. CCT also provided, at staff’s request, a quote for re-lamping the existing quad of courts 
to match the new LED court lights designated for the new EC 1-4 courts. Current pole lights are 8 - 1000w 
Metal Halide fixtures. 

Addressing safe play conditions and court improvements at East Center Pickleball courts now would have an 
added benefit of providing additional Pickleball play opportunities during GVR’s peak season in early 2019 
while the 24-court Pickleball Center is under development. 



2 
 

Supplemental to the 2/27/18 Board motion approving $90,000 for this project, funding of $98,270 is required 
to address all aforementioned East Center Pickleball issues: court safety considerations, converting Court #1 
into two courts, and court lighting (new and improved).  

Specifically, the EC Pickleball court improvements will include:  

• Address court surface safety and court dimension concerns on courts #2 and #3. 
• Convert court #1 into two courts. The corrective process will be primarily achieved by capping the 

existing three courts with a 6” post-tensioned concrete slab to standard court dimensions with proper 
fencing.  

• Light the new four courts with LED pole light fixtures.  
• Convert existing lighted courts to the energy conscious LED light fixtures.  
• Provide required sidewalks and court entry gateways. 

Project Costs Breakdown: 

Apply the approved $90,000 toward the project costs. Additional funding to be determined by the Fiscal Affairs 
Committee.  

Estimated additional costs to complete the project are $98,270. 

Fee Proposal for Professional Services – EC Site Lighting Design $5,170.00 
Fee Proposal for Professional Services - EC PB Renovation $3,100.00 
Earthwork based on Western Technologies Report $15,000.00 
Court Construction $122,400.00 
Replace lighting on courts #4-7 w/ LED Fixtures $20,000.00 
Final Electrical $6,000.00 
Custom Handrails and Wrought Iron Fencing $8,500.00 
Windscreens $1000.00 
Shade materials and installation $3500.00 
Proximity Reader  $3600.00 
Total $188,270.00 

*$188,270 total project cost – <$90,000> prior Board authorization = 
  $98,270 supplemental funding request 

 
 

Recommendation 
 
Approve $98,270 supplemental funding for East Center Pickleball court safety and improvements as 
described within this exhibit.  













EXHIBIT 
 

Board of Directors 
September 25, 2018 

 
 

9/20/18 Fiscal Affairs Committee Special Meeting 
  
To determine funding source(s) P&E’s revised East Center Pickleball courts and lighting of $98,270. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Fiscal Affairs Committee recommends the following GVR reserve accounts and amounts as funding 
sources for the Planning and Evaluation Committee’s revised East Center Pickleball Courts and Lighting 
Project supplemental funding of $98,270 dated 9/18/2018 which is attached and included in this 
recommendation. 
 

Maintenance, Repair and Replace Reserve1 $  16,891 
Initiatives Reserve $  66,379 
Emergency Reserve $  15,000 
Total $  98,270 

 
Note 1 – Reserve Study line items: 
Center 00030-East Center 
 

  FFB 
Category 17000-Tennis courts  Line 700-Pickleball wind screen 1,000 
Category 17500-Basketball/Sport Courts  Line 210-Seal & Striping Pickleball 3,105 
Category 17500-Basketball/Sport Courts  Line 430-Overlay [3] Pickleball Courts 8,929 
Category 19000-Fencing  Line 130-Chain link 10’, Pickleball portion 3,857 

  16,891 
 

 



EXHIBIT 
 

Board of Directors 
September 25, 2018 

 
Board of Directors Sanctions 

 
Overview: 
In the recent GVR member survey, almost half (48%) of respondents replied that they 
somewhat/strongly disagreed that “the Board of Directors follows their Code of Conduct which 
commits them to act in the best interest of the membership as a whole, above their own individual 
needs…”  The Ad Hoc Survey committee-Board sub-committee believes that this issue is as 
relevant with the current board as it is with previous boards, and therefore would like to suggest that 
the Board Code of Conduct be “beefed up” to make it more enforceable. 
 
There is a GVR Member Code of Conduct (Section II Membership, Subsection 1) and member 
sanctions (Section II  Membership, Subsection 5 Suspension of Privileges), but the Board Code of 
Conduct (Section VI Board, Subsection VI) has no sanctions. 
 
Recommendation:  
Secure a legal opinion on a range of appropriate sanctions consistent with GVR Bylaws and 
Arizona statutes.  



EXHIBIT 
 

Board of Directors 
September 25, 2018 

 
Board of Directors FAQ 

 
Overview: 
Member questions come from a variety of sources – GVR center suggestion boxes, the GVR hotline, 
the member survey and the generic board email address. The Committee recommends that a Board 
committee be formed (perhaps 3 Directors, 1 GVR member, and 1 GVR staff person) to address these 
questions. GVR staff have committed to include an FAQ section in GVR electronic publications. 
 
Recommendation:  
The Ad Hoc Survey Committee - Communication subcommittee recommends that the Board form 
an FAQ Ad Hoc Committee, chaired by the Board Secretary. The purpose of the FAQ Ad Hoc 
Committee is to prioritize, answer and publish answers to questions about GVR and its governance 
frequently asked by members.  

 



1 
 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT 
 

Board of Directors 
September 25, 2018 

 
Posting DRAFT Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 

 
 
 
Overview 
 
Board of Directors meeting minutes are posted after they have been reviewed and approved by 
the Board. The Board would like the opportunity to review minutes while the events of the 
meeting are still fresh in their minds.  
 
 
Recommendation 
 
Approve posting minutes from Board of Directors meetings as ‘DRAFT, pending approval’ as 
soon as possible after completion of meeting; update CPM, accordingly.  


	09252018 BOD Meeting Agenda
	Consent Agenda - 08282018 BOD Minutes DRAFT
	PE Exhibit - 09132018 - EC PB
	FAC Exhibit - Financial Statements August 2018 (draft)
	FAC Exhibit - Recommendation re-Funding EC PB 09252018
	SAH Exhibit - Sanctions for Violations of Board Code of Conduct 09252018
	SAH Exhibit - FAQ Ad Hoc Committee 09252018
	Electioneering on GVR Property 09102018 REFERRED TO LEGAL
	Exhibit - Posting DRAFT Board Minutes 09252018



